
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 
AGENDA 


UNIVERSITY COMMITTEE ON COURSES AND CURRICULA 


October 20, 2023 


 


1. Welcome 


2. Approval of minutes 


3. Course proposals by college/school 


 


AGRICULTURE AND LIFE SCIENCES  
Modification  
+Online/Distance 


PSS 4341/6341 Controlled Environment Agriculture Laboratory 


Modification  
+Online/Distance 


PSS 4343/6343 Controlled Environment Agriculture  


 


ART AND SCIENCES  


Addition  AN 4373/6373 Death and American Culture 


Addition 


+Online/Distance  


CO 3373 Media Sales & Promotion 


Modification  EN 4833/6833 The Short Story 


Addition 


+Online/Distance 
LIN 4663/6663 Structure & Evolution of the French Language 


Modification  


+Online/Distance 
PSY 3503 Health Psychology 


Addition  SO 8533 Advanced Qualitative Methods 


 


EDUCATION 
Addition 


+Online/Distance 


EP 4813 Strength and Conditioning Practicum 


Addition  MU 1401 Recreation and Interactive Drumming 


Addition  MU 4733/6733 Piano Performance Practice 


 


ENGINEERING 
Addition 
+Online/Distance 


+Study Abroad 


CHE 4733/6733 Introduction to Sustainability  


+Online/Distance CSE 4643/6643 AI Robotics 


Addition 
+Online/Distance 


+Gulf Coast 


ECE 4683/6683 Power Electronic Applications  
(Proposal was tabled at the September 1, 2023 UCCC meeting) 


Addition IE 1091 Introduction to Name, Image and Likeness 


Addition 
+Online/Distance 


+Gulf Coast 


IE 4163/6163 Occupational Physiology  


Addition 


+Online/Distance 
IE 8703 Optimization in Deep Learning 


 


FOREST RESOURCES 


Modification  FO 8112 Graduate Seminar 



https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/7533/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/7472/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9786/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9863/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/3721/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9756/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/7630/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9875/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9825/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9880/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9641/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9889/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/8261/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9499/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9862/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9861/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9859/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/4776/index.html&step=tcadiff





 


PROFESSIONAL AND CONTINUING STUDIES 
Addition 
+Online/Distance 


+Meridian 


PCS 3203 Applied Leadership in Strategic Initiatives  


Addition 
+Online/Distance 


+Meridian 


PCS 3303 Applied Data-Drive Decision Strategies  


Modification  PCS 4103/6103 Designing Immersive VR Experiences  


Modification  PCS 4113/6113 Designing Immersive VR Experiences II 


Addition 
+Online/Distance 


+Meridian 


PCS 4203 Digital Transformation Adaptive Leadership 


 


VETERINARY SCIENCE 


Addition  CVM 5131 Current Topics in Aquatic Animal Health 


 


 


4. Degree proposals by college/school 


 


ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 


Addition  BAS Healthcare Administration  


 


ARCHITECTURE, ART & DESIGN 
Addition  Undergrad. Minor Historic Preservation 


 


EDUCATION 


Modification  MS Instructional Technology 


Modification  
Change of Name for 


Major 


MATM Middle Level Education to Elementary Education 


Modification  
+Online/Distance 


MS Educational Psychology/General Education Psychology; School 


Psychology; Applied Behavioral Analysis 


Modification BS Educational Psychology 


 


PROFESSIONAL AND CONTINUING STUDIES 


Addition 


  


BAS Business Office Technology  


Addition  Grad. Certificate ENGAGE VR Creator  


 


   



https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9895/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9894/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9819/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9820/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9896/index.html&step=tcadiff

https://next.catalog.msstate.edu/courseleaf/courseleaf.cgi?page=/courseadmin/9834/index.html&step=tcadiff






University Committee on Courses and Curricula 
Mississippi State University 


September 1, 2023 
 
 


Members  
Present: Kathleen Alley (remotely), Tom Carskadon, Russell Carr, Brian Davis, Jagman Dhillon, 


Nathan Drake, Dana Franz, Donna Gordon, Kate Gregory, Arianne Hainsey, Carlen 
Henington, Stephanie Hyche, Attila Karsi, Kris King, Brad Lang, Lynda Moore, Rob 
Moore, Emily Owen, Tommy Parker, Andy Perkins, George Popescu, Matthew Priddy, 
Aswathy Rai, Rebecca Robichaux-Davis, Amber Robinson, Wendy Roussin, Emily Shaw, 
Zac Sibbitt, Barry Stewart, Luke Taylor, Brannan Tisdale,  Jenny Turner, Kenna Vowell, 
Will Whittington 


 
Excused: Brittany Moore-Henderson, Suzanne Powney, Lindon Ratliff, Lesley Strawderman 
 
Absent: Padmanava Dash, Stephanie Hyche  
 
Guests: Kayla Carr, Terry Cruse, Scott DiGiulio, Sol Pelaez, Peter Ryan, Mary Stewart, Stephen 


Williams  
 
Perkins called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. in the Coskrey Auditorium of Memorial Hall.     
Robichaux-Davis moved to approve the minutes from the May 3, 2023 UCCC meeting.  Roussin 
seconded the motion.  The minutes were approved.  
 
Dr. Dana Franz, Director of Academic Quality, presented information about the 2023-2024 Guide and 
Format revision.  Franz announced the Guide and Format was reorganized to include the policy 
information in the front of the document.  Specific areas that were addressed were numbering of 
courses, shortened course format approvals, and a contact minutes worksheet.  Franz indicated the new 
requirements concerning shortened course formats and a contact minutes worksheet will be discussed 
with the Faculty Senate in Fall 2023 and be used on a trial basis in Spring 2024.  Franz also announced 
Student Learning Outcomes will be reviewed by the College Curriculum Committee, and there should be 
a minimum of five outcomes. A member of the UCCC questioned if reviewing Student Learning 
Outcomes would be changing the role of the college curriculum committees.  Franz indicated the college 
curriculum committees should be reviewing the outcomes now. 
 
Dr. Peter Ryan, Executive Vice Provost for Academic Affairs and Dean of the Graduate School, thanked 
the UCCC committee members for their service and indicated this curriculum work is critically important 
to the academic process.   
 
Carr moved to approve the additions and inclusion of the Meridian campus designation for NSG 6105, 
NSG 6115, NSG 6302, NSG 6403, NSG 6503, NSG 7013, NSG 7206, NSG 7225, NSG 7303, NSG 7404, NSG 
7421, NSG 7502, NGS 7603, NSG 8302, NSG 8303, NSG 8334, and NSG 8934, and the approval of the 
program proposal to add an AMSN in Nursing.  Lang seconded the motion.  Dr. Mary Stewart, Dr. Terry 
Cruse, and Dr. Kayla Carr appeared in support of the proposals.  The subcommittee that reviewed the 
proposals made the following observations.  For all NSG course proposals, courses that have exams do 







not list the exams on the Class Schedule, and the exams should be listed.  Some of the courses list 
Exemplars in a separate table but these are not included in the Class Schedule in the order that they will 
be presented in class.  For NSG 6105, there is no indica�on about when the exams will be. Adding the 
exams to the Schedule will indicate what material will be covered in each exam which is needed.  A 
descrip�on for each of the assignments is needed (except exams which is self-explanatory) and what is 
expected to be acceptable (passing) for both Assessments and Peer Evalua�on. The method of 
evalua�on does not indicate how many exams there will be or whether each exam will be counted 
equally.  The syllabus states that the minimum for passing is at least 75% on the exams. This suggests 
that there is a required level of competency. If so, UCCC members asked about the cutoff for passing the 
course. For NSG 6115, under the class schedule and contact hours, change the wording from “Quiz” to 
“Exam” to match the Course Assignments sec�on.  Under course assignments, a descrip�on for each of 
the valida�ons is needed and what is expected to be acceptable (passing). What is acceptable for 
passing for Clinical Performance is needed as well. For NSG 6302, under course assignments, a 
description for each of these assignments is needed and what is expected to be acceptable (passing). For 
NSG 6403, there is only one exam listed (final exam), but under the Course Assignments and Methods of 
Evaluation sections, the term is plural indicating more than one exam.  If there is more than a single 
exam, there needs to be an indication about when the exams will be. This should also indicate what 
material will be covered in each exam.  A description for each of the validations is needed and what is 
expected to be acceptable (passing).  If there is more than one exam, the syllabus should indicate how 
each exam will be counted. The phrase " students must demonstrate satisfactory validation of 
competencies to pass the course" needs to be preceded by an asterisk. The syllabus states that the 
minimum for passing is at least 75% on the exams. This suggests that there is a required level of 
competency and if so, indicate that in the syllabus.  For NSG 6503, there is no indication when the 
exams will be given. Adding the exams to the Schedule will indicate what material will be covered in 
each exam which is needed. A description for each of these assignments is needed (except exams which 
is self-explanatory) and what is expected to be acceptable (passing) for both Assessments and Peer 
Evaluation. The method of evaluation does not indicate how many exams there will be or whether each 
exam will be counted equally. The syllabus states that the minimum for passing is at least 75% on the 
exams. This suggests that there is a required level of competency, and if so, indicate that in the syllabus.  
For NSG 7013, a descrip�on for each of the assignments is needed and what is expected to be 
acceptable (passing) for both Assessments and Case Studies.  For NSG 7206, there is no indica�on about 
when the exams will be given. Adding the exams to the Schedule will indicate what material will be 
covered in each exam which is needed. A descrip�on for each of these assignments is needed (except 
exams which is self-explanatory) and what is expected to be acceptable (passing) for both Assessments 
and Peer Evalua�on. The method of evalua�on does not indicate how many exams there will be or 
whether each exam will be counted equally. The syllabus states that the minimum for passing is at least 
75% on the exams. This suggests that there is a required level of competency, and if so, indicate that in 
the syllabus. For NSG 7225, a descrip�on for each of the valida�ons is needed and what is expected to 
be acceptable (passing). What is acceptable for passing for Clinical Performance is needed as well.  For 
NSG 7303, a description for each of the validations is needed and what is expected to be acceptable 
(passing). What is acceptable for passing for Clinical Performance is needed as well. For NSG 7404, there 
is no indica�on about when the exams will be given. Adding the exams to the Schedule will indicate 
what material will be covered in each exam which is needed. A descrip�on for each of these 
assignments is needed (except exams which is self-explanatory) and what is expected to be acceptable 
(passing) for both Assessments and Peer Evalua�on. The method of evalua�on does not indicate how 
many exams there will be or whether each exam will be counted equally.  For NSG 7421, a descrip�on 
for the assignments and rubric is needed and what is expected to be acceptable (passing).  The syllabus 
should indicate what is the acceptable for passing for Clinical Performance is needed as well. There 







seems to be a discrepancy between the wording in the Course Assignments and in the Methods of 
Evalua�on. Using similar terminology would be clearer (ex: Are Clinical Judgement Assignments and Lab 
Assignments the same thing? Competency Valida�ons are not men�oned under Course Assignments).  
For NSG 7502, a descrip�on for the assignments and rubric is needed and what is expected to be 
acceptable (passing).  For NSG 7603, no addi�onal revisions were listed.  For NSG 8302, a description for 
the assignments and rubric is needed, and what is expected to be acceptable (passing) is also needed.  
For NSG 8303, there is only one exam listed (final exam), but under the Course Assignments and 
Methods of Evaluation sections, the term is plural indicating more than one exam.  If there is more than 
a single exam, there needs to be an indication about when the exams will be. This will indicate what 
material will be covered in each exam. A description for each of the validations is needed and what is 
expected to be acceptable (passing).  If there is more than one exam, the syllabus should describe how 
each exam will be counted in the final grade. The syllabus states that the minimum for passing is at least 
75% on the exams. This suggests that there is a required level of competency. If so, then indicate what is 
the actual cutoff for passing the course. For NSG 8334, a description for the Validations and Grand 
Round Presentations is needed, and an explanation of what is acceptable (passing) is needed. The 
syllabus should explain what is acceptable for passing for Clinical Performance as well.  For NSG 8934, a 
descrip�on for the assignments is needed and what is expected to be acceptable (passing) is 
needed.  What is acceptable for passing for Clinical Performance is needed as well.  For the program 
proposal, the cover/approval sheet is needed with a jus�fica�on and learning outcomes.  Robichaux-
Davis moved to pass the course proposals and the program proposal con�ngent upon the above 
revisions being made.  Stewart seconded the mo�on.  The mo�on to pass con�ngent was approved.   
 
Rai moved to approve the modifica�on of SLCE 1002.  Priddy seconded the mo�on.  The subcommitee 
that reviewed the proposal observed the �tle on the course proposal needs to be revised to match the 
revised name on the syllabus.  Carr moved to pass the proposal con�ngent upon the above concern 
being addressed.  Henington seconded the mo�on.  The mo�on to pass con�ngent was approved.   
 
Rai moved to approve the modification and addition of distance education for BIO 3233.  Priddy 
seconded the motion.  The subcommittee that reviewed the proposal observed on the proposal a 
current syllabus should be attached the proposal.  On the proposal answer “yes” to the question about if 
the syllabus will be revised.  Then attach a revised syllabus in that box in the proposal. The learning 
objectives need clarification.  UCCC members recommended listing four learning outcomes with 
measurable objectives.  The current learning objectives mention reptiles and amphibians.  Carr moved 
to table the proposal.  Henington seconded the motion.  The motion to table was approved.   
 
Rai moved to approve the modification and addition of distance education for EN 4924/6924 and the 
addition and inclusion of distance education for FLS 4353/6353.  The subcommittee that reviewed the 
proposals recommended approval.  The motion was approved. 
 
Rai moved to approve the addition and inclusion of distance education for PH 1073.  Priddy seconded 
the motion.  The subcommittee that reviewed the proposal observed the distinctions between Campus 
5 and Campus 1 are not clearly stated.  It is unclear how students from Campus 5 will be assessed for 
participating in discussions and other online activities, as mentioned in the course proposal’s Distance 
Learning Questions.  UCCC members questioned if the learning objectives were stated to have 
measurable outcomes.  Carr moved to pass the proposal contingent upon the above concerns being 
addressed.  Henington seconded the motion.  The motion to pass contingent was approved. 
 







Rai moved to approve the addition and inclusion of distance education for PHI 3193.  Priddy seconded 
the motion.  The subcommittee that reviewed the proposal observed this course overlaps with courses 
taught in other departments such as Math/Statistics, Ag. Econ., and Industrial Engineering.  Letters of 
support should be obtained from those departments indicating they are not opposed to the proposed 
course due to any overlapping. In the proposal it mentions this proposal could possibly fulfill a general 
education requirement, but general education approval was not requested.  Please clarify this. 
UCCC members questioned why the course was made repeatable.  Stewart moved to table the proposal.  
Robichaux-Davis seconded the motion.  The motion to table was approved.   
 
Rai moved to approve the modification of the BS in Healthcare Administration.  Priddy seconded the 
motion.  The subcommittee that reviewed the proposal recommend approval.  The motion was 
approved.   
 
Rai moved to approve the modification of the undergraduate minor in Communication.  Priddy 
seconded the motion.  The subcommittee that reviewed the proposal recommended approval.  The 
motion was approved.   
 
Rai moved to approve the modification of the BA in Foreign Languages.  Priddy seconded the motion.  
The subcommittee that reviewed the proposal recommended the ranges of hours in the curriculum 
outline be removed and italicize the hours on the left side of the curriculum outline table under General 
Electives.  The motion was approved, and the initiator will be asked to make the two small revisions. 
 
Priddy moved to approve the modification of FDM 3573.  Roussin seconded the motion.  The 
subcommittee that reviewed the proposal observed in the revised syllabus it indicates the “[q]uizzes will 
not be reopened due to waiting until the last minute, forgetfulness, or issues with technology, and they 
cannot be made up after the deadline date.”  UCCC members felt this provision was in violation of AOP 
12.09.  With an excused absence, work can be made up after the deadline date. Issues with technology 
can also be an excused absence.  In the revised syllabus it indicates “[e]xcused absences are extreme 
and unusual circumstances.”  UCCC members felt this was not an accurate statement. The revised 
syllabus indicates a student needs to notify the faculty member before an excused absence.  The UCCC 
members pointed out an excused absence cannot always be planned.  AOP 12.09.  The revised syllabus 
indicates late assignments are not accepted.  Under AOP 12.09 late assignments can be accepted if the 
absence is excused.  In the syllabus it directs students to email Engineering distance support for 
assistance.  UCCC members asked if the online version of the course would be synchronous or 
asynchronous.  Henington moved to pass the proposal contingent upon the above concerns being 
addressed.  Carr seconded the motion.  The motion to pass contingent was approved. 
 
Priddy moved to approve the modification of the MAG in Animal and Dairy Science.  Roussin seconded 
the motion.  The subcommittee that reviewed the proposal observed the two sentences about DIS 
should be combined to be clear about how many hours will count toward the degree. The Journal Club 
and seminar have only one suggested course each.  The UCCC members asked if there are other options 
to consider.  If there are not, UCCC members recommended inserting those specific courses be included 
in the curriculum.  UCCC members observed that most first level graduate statistics courses are four 
credit hours.  The statistics class requirement in the program proposal is listed as three hours.  UCCC 
members questioned if there are any three hours graduate level statistic hours classes.  The effective date 
for this program proposal will be Fall 2024.  Robichaux-Davis moved to pass the proposal contingent 
upon the above concerns being addressed.  Carr seconded the motion.  The motion to pass contingent was 
approved.   







 
Priddy moved to approve the addition and inclusion of the Meridian designation for ED 2011, the 
additions and inclusion of distance education for EDX 8043 and EDX 8113, the addition of MU 1101, 
and the modification of MU 8023.   Roussin seconded the motion.  The subcommittee that reviewed the 
proposals recommended approval.  The motion was approved. 
 
Priddy moved to approve the modifications of MU 2111, MU 2121, MU 3111, MU 3112, MU 3122, and 
MU 3411.  Roussin seconded the motion. The subcommittee that reviewed the proposals observed in the 
catalog description for MU 3112, it should be four hours studio.  In the catalog description for MU 3122 
it should be four hours studio.  In all of the proposals, the following wording was in each syllabus: “Exams 
are held one-on-one with the instructor. Students who are unable to attend an exam at the scheduled 
time must notify the instructor via e-mail or phone on the day of the exam. If a student fails to show up 
for an exam or has not notified the instructor regarding an exam absence by the next regular class 
meeting, the student will receive an automatic ‘F’ for the exam.”  UCCC members observed this wording 
was not in compliance with AOP 12.09.  Information about excused absences should be included in this 
section. Robichaux-Davis moved to pass the proposals contingent upon the above concerns being 
addressed.  Roussin seconded the motion.  The motion to pass contingent was approved. 
 
Robichaux-Davis moved to approve the addition, the inclusion of distance education, and the inclusion 
of the Meridian designation for ECE 4683/6683.  Priddy seconded the motion.  The subcommittee that 
reviewed the proposal observed there are only two Learning Outcomes and according to the Guide & 
Format there should be five or more. The syllabus indicates students will be given an opportunity to 
make up an exam or a quiz if the student has informed the faculty member within 24 hours of the 
absence.  The student should be able to inform the faculty member within 24 hours of the student’s 
return to campus. UCCC members observed the additional requirements for the graduate students were 
not rigorous enough. The contact hours should be broken down into increments of three or less.  Rai 
moved to table the course proposal.  Alley seconded the motion.  The motion to table was approved.   
 
Robichaux-Davis moved to approve the addition of CVM 5892; and the additions, inclusion of distance 
education, and inclusion of the Meridian designation for PCS 2111, PCS 3003, PCS 3103, PCS 4003, and 
PCS 4112.  Priddy seconded the motion.  The subcommittee that reviewed the proposals observed for 
CVM 5892, the catalog description indicates this is a lecture/lab.  There are 32 lecture contact hours 
which are enough for 2 credit hours.  There are 14.5 lab hours which would almost one half of a credit 
for the lab.  To increase the course to three hours credit, 15.5 more lab hours would be needed.  The 
initiator needs to determine if the lab hours should be increased to make it a three hours credit course 
or if the course should remain a two hours credit course.  The student learning objectives are not stated 
in specific measurable statements that are aligned with the methods of assessments. The syllabus does 
not have an attendance policy.  For PCS 2111, PCS 3003, and PCS 3103, the subcommittee observed the 
course description on the proposal and the syllabus should match, the course objectives were not 
clearly stated, the descriptions of the course assignments do not give enough detail, and there are no 
due dates for assignments.  For PCS 4003, the course description on the proposal and the syllabus 
should match.  The office hours should be clarified.  What 89.5 or 79.5 grade would be on the grading 
scale should be clarified.  There are no due dates for assignments.  Contact hours for each major topic 
that are greater than three hours should be further subdivided.  There are two weeks designated as 
Week 8.  One week has a final exam. Another week has topics and final project presentations, so this 
needs clarification.  Roussin moved to pass the proposals contingent upon the above concerns being 
addressed.  Taylor seconded the motion.  The motion to pass contingent was approved.   
 







Robichaux-Davis moved to approve the addition, inclusion of distance education, and inclusion of the 
Meridian designation for PCS 4123/6123.  Priddy seconded the motion.  The subcommittee that 
reviewed the proposal observed new letters of support need to be obtained. UCCC members questioned 
whether a new course title should be selected since this course will be housed in the College of 
Professional and Continuing studies.  The target audience is Secondary Education Majors or Thrive in 
five STEM MATS students. This does not align with the College of Professional and Continuing Studies. 
Those are students in the College of Education. The syllabus indicates the course is “EDS 4533/6533” in 
the “College of Education” and in a department that no longer exists.  The College of Education 
Conceptual Framework is also included. This information needs to be updated.  Course objectives are 
not measurable and/or stated as outcomes.  Policies need to be removed from the syllabus that are on 
the University Syllabus.  The University Syllabus should be referenced. The syllabus does not follow the 
most current syllabus requirements. Within the assessments description the EDS course is referenced.  
Assignments and assessments are not adequately described.  Roussin moved to table the course 
proposal.  R. Moore seconded the motion.  The motion to table was approved.   
 
The program proposal to modify the MS in Instructional Technology was withdrawn from the agenda. 
 
Robichaux-Davis moved to approve the addition and inclusion of distance education for the BAS in 
Public Management.  Priddy seconded the motion.  The subcommittee that reviewed the proposal 
observed MAT 1753 needs to be removed from the Curriculum Outline since it is not taught at MSU. 
UCCC members asked what the purpose of the “University Electives” are.  UCCC members asked if there 
should be guidelines for the Technical Courses in the Discipline. UCCC members question since PS 1113 
is a prerequisite for PS 3193 and PS 4703, should it be included in the curriculum.  PS 1113 could also be 
used as a Social/Behavior Science general education requirement.  A major code for Public Management 
should be included in the program proposal.  The letter of support from Brian Shoup is confusing 
because it includes four graduate courses.  Roussin moved to pass the program proposal contingent 
upon the above concerns being addressed.  R. Moore seconded the motion.  The motion to pass 
contingent was approved.   
 
Roussin moved to adjourn the meeting.  R. Moore seconded the motion.  The motion to adjourn was 
approved.  The meeting was adjourned at 4:10 p.m. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 








APPROVAL FORM FOR 


DEGREE PROGRAMS 
MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY 


NOTE: This form is a cover sheet that must accompany the degree program change proposal. The·actual proposal 
should be prepared in accordance with format requirements provided in the Guide and Format/or Curriculum Proposals 
published by the UCCC. Both cover sheet and proposal should be submitted to DCCC Mail Stop 9702 (281 Garner 


Hall), Phone: 325-9410. 


College: College of Professional and Continuing Studies 


Department: 


Contact Person: Ryan Walker Mail Stop: 9634 


Nature of Change: Addition of Certificate 


Effective Date: Spring 2024 


Current Degree Program Name: NA 


E-mail: rwalker@nsparc.msstate.edu


Date Initiated: April 27, 2023


Major: Concentration: 


New Degree Program Name: (Certificate) ENGAGE VR Creator 


Major: Concentration: 


Summary of Proposed Changes: This is a new certificate that is comprised of two, 


three hour courses. The micro-credential will include a course on content creation in 


virtual reality (VR) and an application course on the development and delivery on a 


virtual reality experience. 











INTENT TO OFFER, MODIFY, OR DELETE A CERTIFICATE PROGRAM 
Institutional Request Form – Appendix 16 
(Submit in PDF format with signatures.) 


10/26/22 cp 


INTENT TO OFFER MODIFY OR DELETE A CERTIFICATE PROGRAM 
Institution:  Mississippi State University 


 
Date of anticipated implementation:  Spring 2024 


 
Notification of intent to:  ☒Offer a certificate 


☐Modify an existing certificate 
☐Delete a certificate 


 
Certificate title as it will appear on Academic Program 
Inventory:  


ENGAGE VR Creator 


Six-digit CIP code (and four-digit IHL sequence code if 
this is a modification or deletion): 


11.0804 


Total credit hours:  6 
Unit head:  
Phone:  
Email:  


Dr. Susan Seal 
(662) 325-0007 
susan.seal@msstate.edu 


 
OFFERING or MODIFYING a certificate - Complete this section if the intent is to offer or modify a certificate. 
Vocational certificate: ☒Yes ☐No 
Credit-bearing program: ☒Yes ☐No 
Title IV financial aid eligible: ☒Yes ☐No 
Which of the following best describes this certificate program? 
☐ Pre-Baccalaureate (Less than 1 Year) - Undergraduate program with duration of less than one academic year; 


designed for completion in less than 30 credit hours 
☐ Pre-Baccalaureate (At Least 1 Year) - Undergraduate program with duration of at least 1 year; designed for 


completion in at least 30 hours; does not meet requirements for associate or bachelor’s degrees 
☒ Post-Baccalaureate - Program designed beyond the baccalaureate degree but does not meet the requirements 


for a master’s degree 
☐ Post-Master’s - Program designed beyond the master’s degree but does not meet the requirements for a 


doctoral degree 
☐ Other - Other certificate program not meeting one of the four criteria above 
Program summary: 
The College of Professional and Continuing Studies (CPCS) will offer the industry recognized “ENGAGE VR Creator” 
certificate to students’ successfully completing the established coursework (PCS 4113/6113 and PCS 4103/6103).  The 
ENGAGE VR Creator certificate is an industry-recognized program designed to empower students with the skills and 
knowledge needed to excel in the dynamic world of virtual reality (VR) content creation. In a rapidly evolving digital 
landscape, the ability to craft immersive VR experiences is a valuable asset with applications across diverse industries. 
 
Key Program Highlights: 
Experiential Learning in the Metaverse: Our program leverages experiential learning through the metaverse, allowing 
students to immerse themselves in the world of VR content creation. Through hands-on experience, they learn to 
develop VR animations and simulations aligned with their personal interests or career aspirations. 
 
Endorsed by Industry Leaders: The ENGAGE VR has been adopted by leading organizations across various business 
verticals, including KPMG, Pfizer, 3M, Stanford University, Lenovo, HSBC, KIA, and many more. ENGAGE, one of the 
fastest-growing platforms in the Metaverse, collaborates with over 180 global enterprises to bring virtual strategies to 
life. 







INTENT TO OFFER, MODIFY, OR DELETE A CERTIFICATE PROGRAM 
Institutional Request Form – Appendix 16 
(Submit in PDF format with signatures.) 


10/26/22 cp 


 
Career Opportunities Abound: VR technology has transcended boundaries, offering employment opportunities in 
virtually every sector. Graduates of this program are well-prepared to embark on fulfilling careers in fields such as 
education, healthcare, entertainment, architecture, and more, where VR is transforming the way we interact and 
learn. 
 
Comprehensive Curriculum: The certificate offers a comprehensive curriculum, spanning two key courses: 
 
PCS 4103/6103 Content Creation in Virtual Reality: Students gain proficiency in VR content creation, learning 3D 
modeling, animation, and VR software tools. 
 
PCS 4113/6113 Development and Delivery of Virtual Reality Experience: Students identify target audiences, develop 
VR experiences, and assess their impact. 
 
Flexible Learning Options: Courses are offered in both spring and fall semesters as two continuous eight-week 
sections. Whether on campus or through online learning, students can access the program with an emphasis on 
proficiency with the Canvas learning platform. 
 
State-of-the-Art Facilities: Face-to-face classes meet in the ISWD VR teaching lab, providing access to cutting-edge VR 
equipment and technology. Online education students are encouraged to use VR headsets (Oculus Quest or Oculus 
Quest II) for a fully immersive learning experience, though it is not mandatory. 
 
Internship Opportunities: Upon program completion, students are eligible for internships with Optima Ed, the industry 
leader in VR education. This hands-on experience further enhances their expertise and opens doors to exciting career 
prospects. 
 
Engage in ENGAGE: As part of the program, students engage with the ENGAGE virtual learning platform, a trusted and 
widely recognized tool in the VR education landscape. 
 


 
 
 
Chief Academic Officer Signature – Date 


 
 
Institutional Executive Officer Signature – Date 


 
 







ENGAGE VR Creator Certificate - Program Outcome Mapping 


Program Level Outcome 
PLO 1: Demonstrate proficiency in virtual reality (VR) creation using industry standard VR content 


creation tools and software. 
Course Level Outcome: Assessments: 
PCS 4103/6104: 
CLO6 – Create and record basic VR animations 
for academic, personal, or professional contexts. 


VR Basic Content Creation – Students will submit 
various types of VR content files. 


PCS 4103/6104: 
CLO1 – Navigate VR content creation platforms 
using VR headsets and desktop apps for creating 
engaging VR content. 


Skills Test – Students will complete a skills test in 
the Engage platform to demonstrate proficiency. 


Program Level Outcome 
PLO 2: Collaborate with users and peers to collect feedback and revise experiences to enhance quality 


and effectiveness. 
Course Level Outcome: Assessments: 
PCS 4113/6113: 
CLO1: Collaborate with peers to revise VR 
creations according to feedback. 


Delivery and Assessment Participant Experience- 
Students will deliver a VR product to peers and 
have them give feedback. 


PCS 4103/6104: 
CLO5 – Evaluate effectiveness of VR animations 
for the purpose of improving the impact of VR 
content. 


Final Project/Presentation – Students will produce 
an immersive VR experience of their choice and 
present it to peers. 


Program Level Outcome: 
PLO3: Synthesize presentation and communication skills to effectively share VR creations with peers 


and stakeholders. 
Course Level Outcome: Assessments: 
PCS 4113/6113:  
CLO2 – Communicate using industry standard 
language appropriate to the target audience. 


Product Pitch – Students will develop a product 
pitch for a VR product of their choice. 


PCS 4113/6113: 
CLO3 – Integrate basic VR creation skills to 
develop a comprehensive VR product.  


Final Portfolio – Students will develop a portfolio 
consisting of a VR product that is comprehensive 
of what they have learned in the course. 


Justification for Program:  This certificate was created in response to the rapidly evolving landscape of 
educational technology and the increasing demand for skilled professionals in this field. As the 
educational landscape continues to shift towards online and immersive learning experiences, VR offers 
opportunities for engagement, interactivity, and experiential learning. The integration of VR 
technologies in education has the potential to enhance pedagogical approaches, enabling students to 
explore complex concepts in a dynamic, three-dimensional environment. Furthermore, industries 
beyond education, such as healthcare, engineering, and entertainment, are also embracing VR, creating 
a growing need for professionals well-versed in its applications. A certificate program in VR not only 
aligns with the broader digital transformation strategies in education but also equips learners with a 
competitive edge in a technology-driven job market, making it an important investment in the future of 
education and workforce development. 









		INTENT_TO_OFFER_VR_Micro31_Forsytheedits.pdf

		ENGAGEVRCertificateProposal.pdf

		UCCC_VREngageMicrocred[42].pdf



		1337_001.pdf

































































































































































		BAS_BOT_Program_Proposal (1)

		CPCS Support Letter_BOT






APPROVAL FORM FOR


DEGREE PROGRAMS
MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY


NOTE:  This form is a cover sheet that must accompany the degree program change proposal.  The actual proposal 
should be prepared in accordance with format requirements provided in the Guide and Format for Curriculum Proposals 
published by the UCCC.  Both cover sheet and proposal should be submitted to UCCC Mail Stop 9702 (281 Garner 
Hall), Phone:  325-9410. 


College: Education   Department: Counseling, Higher Ed, Ed Psych, & Foundations    


Email: ewei@colled.msstate.eduContact Person: Elaine Wei       Mail Stop: 9727            
Nature of Change:  Program Modification      Date Initiated:  01/18/2022               
Effective Date: Spring 2024       Current Degree Program Name: Bachelor of Science 


Major:  Educational Psychology Concentration: N/A 


New Degree Program Name: No Change 


Major: No Change  Concentration:  No Change 


Summary of Proposed Changes: 


Update coursework to: (a) incorporate  recent changes in MSU-s general education mathematics 
(now “quantitative reasoning”) requirement; (b) reorganize some courses and requirements to 
reduce redundancy and avoid confusion; (c) update supporting interest area courses according to 
course changes in other programs; (c) apply other course changes that are approved by the 
program faculty )see Undergraduate Degree Modification Outline Form for details). 









































		BS Ed Psych Degree Modification REVISED Cover Page.pdf

		DEGREE PROGRAMS

		MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY





		BS Ed Psych Degree Modification.pdf










 


 


 


 


 


A MEMORANDUM 


 


 


 


 


DATE:   October 9, 2023 


TO:  UCCC Members 


FROM:  Dr. Andy Perkins, Chair 


SUBJECT: UCCC Meeting on Friday, October 20, 2023 at 1:30 p.m. 


 


 


The agenda and proposals for the UCCC meeting on Friday, October 20, 2023 at 1:30 p.m. in the 


Trotter Room of the Center for Advanced Vehicular Systems in the Research Park are enclosed.  


Please contact the UCCC Office if you are unable to attend the meeting. 


Thank you. 


Enclosures:  Course/Curriculum Proposals 


 








MODIFICATION TO EXISTING ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM 
Institutional Request Form – Appendices 9ab 


(Submit in PDF format with signatures.) 


10/26/22 cp 


601-484-0189 


krj4@msstate.edu 


MODIFICATION TO EXISTING ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM 
Institution: Mississippi State University 


 


Date of anticipated modification implementation: January  2024 


 


Modification request: ☒Rename 


☐Consolidate 


 


Responsible academic unit: Mississippi State University Meridian Division of Education 


Institutional contact: 


Phone: 


Email: 


Kimberly Hall 


 


List any institutions within the State offering similar 


programs: 


 


 


RENAMING - Complete this section if modification being requested is the renaming of an academic degree program. 


Program title as it currently appears on Academic 


Program Inventory, Diploma, and Transcript: 


Master of Arts in Teaching – Middle Level Education 


New program title as it will appear on Academic 


Program Inventory, Diploma, and Transcript: 


Master of Arts in Teaching – Elementary Education 


Degree(s) awarded: Master of Arts 


Six-digit CIP code, IHL sequence code: 13.1202 


Total credit-hour requirement: 36 


 


CONSOLIDATING - Complete this section if modification being requested is the consolidation of academic degree 


programs. 


Program titles as currently appears on Academic 


Program Inventory, Diploma, and Transcript: 


Click or tap here to enter text. 


New consolidated program title as it will appear on 


Academic Program Inventory, Diploma, and 


Transcript: 


Click or tap here to enter text. 


Degree(s) to be awarded: Click or tap here to enter text. 


Six-digit CIP code, IHL sequence code for 


consolidated program:  


Click or tap here to enter text. 


Six-digit CIP code, IHL sequence code for program(s) 


that are to be eliminated through the consolidation 


process:  (Deletion forms do not need to be completed 


for these.) 


Click or tap here to enter text. 


Total credit-hour requirement for new consolidated 


program: 


Click or tap here to enter text. 


 


Please respond to the questions on the following pages to aid the institution and IHL staff in making recommendations 


to the IHL Board of Trustees regarding this proposal. 


 


 


 


Chief Academic Officer Signature – Date 


 


 


Institutional Executive Officer Signature – Date 


Delta State University, Jackson State University, 


University of Southern Mississippi, William Carey 


University 







MODIFICATION TO EXISTING ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM 
Institutional Request Form – Appendices 9ab 


(Submit in PDF format with signatures.) 


10/26/22 cp 


 


Number of students enrolled in last 5 years:  


(For consolidation request, combine numbers for all 


programs to be consolidated) 


Number of graduates expected in next 5 years in 


renamed/consolidated program: 


Year 1 0 Year 1 34 


Year 2 0 Year 2 50 


Year 3 0 Year 3 60 


Year 4 34 Year 4 70 


Year 5 50 Year 5 80 


Total 84 Total 294 


 


Program summary: 


The M.A.T.E. program is an alternate route licensure program of study that consists of 36 semester hours of graduate-


level coursework. It is designed for those who wish to prepare for a career as an elementary teacher.   


 


Program Modification Questions: 


1 Describe how the proposed modification fits within the mission of the institution. 


 Mississippi State University is a public research, land-grant university with a mission to provide access and 


opportunity to all sectors of Mississippi’s diverse population, as well as other states and countries, and to offer 


excellent programs of teaching, research, and service. MSU offers a comprehensive range of undergraduate, 


graduate, and professional programs across many disciplines. The university embraces its role as a major 


contributor to the economic development of the state and beyond through targeted research and the transfer of 


ideas and technology to the public, supported by faculty, staff, student, and alumni relationships with industry, 


community organizations, and government entities. 


 


As can be seen by the first 2 years of enrollment in the program, the MAT-E degree contributes significantly to 


the economic development of our state by producing teachers that can work in a critical needs area, elementary 


education, for our state. The change in name from Middle Level Education to Elementary Education simply 


reflects the license that the Mississippi Department of Education awards (K-6).  


 


2 Is this modification unnecessarily duplicative of other programs within the IHL system?  


 The modification now puts the degree program name in line with the 4 other universities offering the degree. 


 


3 Describe the anticipated institutional impact including any research efforts associated with this program. 


 Enrollment may increase in the program because the name of the program will be reflective of an Elementary 


Education licensure program (K-6) rather than a Middle Level licensure program (7-8). Potential students 


looking for universities offering the alternate route in elementary education will now easily be able to identify 


that MSU offers the degree. 


 


4 Are there any anticipated budget savings associated with the proposed modification? 


 No change in budget is expected. 


 


5 
Are there any changes to the educational objectives of the degree program associated with the proposed 


modification?  


 Educational objectives remain the same. 


 


6 Are there any changes to the curriculum of the degree program associated with the proposed modification? 


 Yes. Six courses have been revised to more accurately address grades K-6. 


 


7 Describe how the proposed modifications will affect program faculty. 


 No effect on faculty is expected. 


 







MODIFICATION TO EXISTING ACADEMIC DEGREE PROGRAM 
Institutional Request Form – Appendices 9ab 


(Submit in PDF format with signatures.) 


10/26/22 cp 


8 Describe the evaluation process which led to the request for the proposed modification. 


 When the Mississippi Department of Education provided the opportunity for an alternate route pathway to earn a 


K-6 license, faculty began examining the current Middle Level Education degree program to make necessary 


modifications that would reflect the new license, which included renaming the degree program to reflect the 


license and course modifications to address grades K-6.  


 


 








3/23/2023







_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Chair, College or School Curriculum Committee 
 
 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Dean of College or School 
 
 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Chair, University Committee on Courses and Curricula 
 
 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Chair, Graduate Council(if applicable) 
 
 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Chair, Deans Council 







GRADUATE DEGREE MODIFICATION OUTLINE FORM 
Use the chart below to make modifications to an existing Graduate Degree. All deleted courses and information  
should be shown in italics and all new courses and information in bold. Please include the course prefix,  
number, and title in both columns. Expand rows as needed.  


 
CURRENT Degree Description PROPOSED Degree Description 
Degree: Master of Arts in Teaching 
Major:  Middle Level 
 


Degree: Master of Arts in Teaching 
Major:  Elementary Education 
 


The M.A.T.M. program is an alternate route licensure 
program of study that consists of 36 semester hours of 
graduate-level coursework. It is designed for those 
who wish to prepare for a career as a middle-level 
teacher. In addition to the criteria for admission to a 
Master or Science degree program (with the exception 
of a teaching license), M.A.T.M. candidates must pass 
the Praxis Core and Praxis II specialty Area Test 
required for middle-level licensure by the Mississippi 
Department of Education, possess either 21 hours in a 
single content area or pass the secondary education 
Praxis II specialty Area test for a specific content 
area, and pass a certified background check. 
 
Students in the M.A.T.M. will complete the 
comprehensive examination in the final semester of 
enrollment by registering for and passing the 
appropriate Praxis II Principles of Learning and 
Teaching examination through ETS. 
 


The M.A.T.E. program is an alternate route licensure 
program of study that consists of 36 semester hours of 
graduate-level coursework. It is designed for those 
who wish to prepare for a career as an elementary 
teacher.  In addition to the criteria for admission to a 
Master of Science degree program (with the exception 
of a teaching license), M.A.T.E. candidates must 
pass the Praxis CORE, possess a 21 composite 
ACT score, OR have a minimum GPA of 3.0 on the 
last 60 hours of coursework and pass a certified 
background check.   
 
Students in the M.A.T.E. will complete the 
comprehensive examination in the final semester of 
enrollment. 


CURRENT CURRICULUM 
OUTLINE 


Required 
Hours 


PROPOSED CURRICULUM 
OUTLINE 


Required 
Hours 


Major Required Courses  Major Required Courses  


EDE 8113 Middle Level Management & 
the Young Adolescent 
 
 
EDE 8123 Foundations for Teaching 
Middle Level Mathematics 
 
EDE 8133 Middle Level Internship I 
 
 
EDE 8143 Middle Level Internship II 
 
 
EDE 8153 Professional Roles of the 
Middle Level Educator 
 
EDF 8553 Research in the Classroom 
 
EPY 8473 Middle Level Assessment and 
Evaluation 
 
RDG 8113 Middle Level Literacy 
Instruction 


3 
 
 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 


EDE 8113 Planning & Managing of 
Learning for Elementary & Special 
Education 
 
EDE 8123 Foundations for Teaching 
Middle Level Mathematics 
 
EDE 8133 Elementary & Special 
Education Residency I 
 
EDE 8143 Elementary & Special 
Education Residency II 
 
EDE 8153 Professional Roles of the 
Middle Level Educator 
 
EDF 8553 Research in the Classroom 
 
EPY 8473 Elementary Assessment 
and Evaluation 
 
RDG 6123 Elementary Literacy 
Instruction I 


3 
 
 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 







 
RDG 8123 Supporting the Middle Level 
Literacy Learner 
 
RDG 8133 Middle Level Content Area 
Literacy Instruction 
 
Select one of the following: 
   EDE 8163 Teaching Middle Level 


Mathematics Content 
   EDE 8173 Teaching Middle Level 


Social Studies 
   EDE 8183 Teaching Middle Level 


Sciences 
 
Select one graduate-level diversity 
elective 
 
 


 
3 
 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


3 
 


 
RDG 6143 Elementary Literacy 
Instruction II 
 
RDG 8133 Middle Level Content Area 
Literacy Instruction 
 
Select one of the following: 
   EDE 8163 Teaching Middle Level 


Mathematics Content 
   EDE 8173 Teaching Middle Level 


Social Studies 
   EDE 8183 Teaching Middle Level 


Sciences 
 
Select one graduate-level diversity 
elective 
 


 
3 
 
 


3 
 
 


3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


3 
 


Total Hours 36 Total Hours 36 
 
 


Justification  
 


In fall of 2021, the Mississippi Department of Education (MDE) expanded an initiative to recruit, prepare, graduate, 
and retain an increasing number of academically talented and diverse teacher candidates through a Request for 
Proposals process. This initiative, the Mississippi Teacher Residency (MTR), would allow these candidates to enter 
and remain in the profession through a teacher residency program. Mississippi State University was awarded a grant 
to develop and implement this new elementary (K-6) program with the proposed residency curriculum subsequently 
approved by the MDE in the spring of 2022. This proposed curriculum outline in this proposal aligns with this 
curriculum approved by the MDE to result in educator licensure under endorsements 120 and 221.   


The changes require revisions to the following courses:  
EDE 8113 Middle Level Management & the Young Adolescent 
EDE 8133 Middle Level Internship I 
EDE 8143 Middle Level Internship II 
EPY 8473 Middle Level Assessment and Evaluation 
 
Additionally, the changes require the addition of the following new courses: 
RDG 6123 Elementary Literacy Instruction I 
RDG 6143 Elementary Literacy Instruction II 
 
Course revisions and additions to the program expand the focus from only middle level to elementary grades (K-6). 
The Middle Level Management & the Young Adolescent course will now focus on grades K-6 while also 
embedding course topics related to lesson planning and management of classrooms serving children with special 
needs.  The Middle Level Assessment and Evaluation course pivots to include content relevant to grades K-6. The 
Middle Level Internships I and II will now focus on a residency experience under the supervision of an 
accomplished teacher in elementary grades K-6 while also providing opportunities in mild-moderate special 
education classrooms.  The Elementary Literacy Instruction I and II courses shift course content to the early grades 
in order to prepare students for the Foundations of Reading examination, which is a significant component of the 
MDE licensure requirements.   


 
 







Student Learning Outcomes 


MTR is a rigorous graduate-level program, which upon completion residents receive a master's degree in elementary 
education with the opportunity to add an endorsement in special education. This master of arts in teaching 
elementary degree ensures residents have the skills, knowledge, and dispositions for effectiveness as licensed 
educators under endorsements 120 and 221. Residents will spend one year in a participating district while receiving 
mentorship from a high-quality teacher in collaboration with community partners and other educators. The core 
practices to which residents will be expected to aspire and that they will be consistently evaluated on include: 


• Establish a Community of Learners 
• Teach Towards Instructional Goals 
• Position Students as Competent Sense Makers 
• Teach with Each Student in Mind 
• Orient Students to the Content 
• Assess Student Understanding to Guide Instruction 
• Invest in the School Community to Support Student Learning 
• Reflect on Teaching Practice  


Additionally, students will be prepared to demonstrate competencies measured by the required licensure exams 
required by the MDE, currently including the appropriate Praxis II Content exams for elementary and special 
education by Educational Testing Services, as well as the Foundations of Reading examination by Pearson.  


1. Will this program change meet local, state, regional, and national educational and cultural needs? 
Yes. The United States is currently experiencing a teacher shortage and Mississippi has a particularly acute 
teacher shortage with elementary education recently added as a critical shortage subject area. Program 
completers also receive an endorsement in special education which is also a critical need subject area in 
Mississippi. 


 
 
2. Will this program change result in a duplication in the system? 


No. The revision of this program provides a first-ever alternate route to teacher certification for elementary in 
Mississippi. Previously, a candidate would only have access to certification for middle level or secondary or 
need to complete a second bachelor’s degree.   


 
 
3. Will this program change/advance student diversity within the discipline? 


Yes. The program seeks to recruit individuals underrepresented in the teaching profession with people of color, 
men veterans from the Armed Forces, and teacher assistants strongly encouraged to apply.  


 
 
4. Will this program change result in the potential placement of graduates in MS, the Southeast, and the 


U.S.? 
Yes.  Residents complete a one-year residency and then commit to teaching for two years in a geographical 
critical shortage area in Mississippi upon program completion.  


 
 
5. Will this program change result in an increase in the potential salaries of graduates in MS, the Southeast, 


and the U.S.?  
Yes. This program will lead to the AA certification level on the Mississippi teaching license. According to the 
FY2022-2023 MAEP Salary Schedule, an assistant teacher completing this program will experience an increase 
in salary from $17,000 annually to at least $44,000 annually and potentially more depending on the local district 
salary supplement. 


 







Support: Please see letters of support from program faculty from Campus 1, 2, and 5 in the Department of 
Curriculum, Instruction, and Special Education and the administration from Campus 2. This degree program will 
be offered on Campus 2 only. 
 


Proposed 4-letter Abbreviation: MATE 


 


Effective Date: Fall 2023 
 
 







MISSISSIPPI STATE 
U N I V I R S I T Y,. 


March 21, 2023 


To Whom It May Concern, 


COLLEGE OF EDUCATION 


Department of Curriculum, Instruction, 
and Special Education 


, P.O. Box 9705 
175 President's Circle 
Allen Hall, Room 310 


Mississippi State, MS 39762 
P. 662.325.3523
F. 662.325. 7857


clse.mss1-ote.edu 


The Mississippi Department of Education recently created an alternate pathway for elementary 
education Ii censure (K-6). Specifically the State Board of Education voted to modify the 
existing Master of Arts in Teaching Elementary Education (4-6) to include an Elementary 
Education (K-6) option. The Department of Curriculum, Instruction, and Special Education 
(Campus 1, 2, and 5) approves the submission of the degree program modification to revise the 
current Master of Arts in Middle Level Education ( 4-6) to the Master of Arts in Elementary 
Education (K-6). This includes a name change as well as course modifications in the program. 


Kathleen M 
Alley 


Digi1al/y signed by 
Kathleen M Alley 
Date: 2023.03.21 
15: 11.25 -05'00' 


Kathleen Alley 


Stephanie 


Lemley 


; Digllally signed by 
.' .. Stephanie Lemley 


,' :□al!!: 2023.03.21 
11 :33:14 --05'00' 


Kristin Javorsk 


Rebecca R. Oigilally signed 'oy Reber.ca 
R. Roblch3ux�Oavis 


Robichaux-Davis ��'.���02J.0J.21 20,1-1:J1 


Rebecca Robichaux-Davis 


Digitally signed by Jeffrey 


J ff L f'fl 
Leiner e rey e 11er Dale: 2023 03.21 
15.07 .04 -05'00' 


Jeff Leffler 


au. { JJt:rM� 
AngetJulkana 


KE. ·NN ETl:.J V
- Digttally signe.d bf 


. Fl . KENNETH V ANTHONY, 
ANTHONY �;,�•�,��21J-�J


2


Kenneth Anthony 


Gail Lindsey 


, , \, Digitally signed by Nicole 
Nicole Mrller,\Miller 


j , .. 0aj�.: 2023.03.21 
i/ 16:46:40 -05'00' 


Nicole Miller 


Digitally signed by Tania 


Tania Hanna �=��•202J.orn 


Tania Hanna 


Ksenia 
Zhbanova 


13:41:19-05'00' 


Digitally signed by Ksenia 
Zhbanova 
Dale: 2023.03.21 
11 :35:56 --05'00' 


Ksenia Zhbanova 





		Degree Modification Cover Page MATE.pdf

		DEGREE PROGRAMS

		MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY





		MATM Degree Modfication Proposal.pdf

		Justification

		Student Learning Outcomes

		1. Will this program change meet local, state, regional, and national educational and cultural needs?

		2. Will this program change result in a duplication in the system?

		3. Will this program change/advance student diversity within the discipline?

		4. Will this program change result in the potential placement of graduates in MS, the Southeast, and the U.S.?

		5. Will this program change result in an increase in the potential salaries of graduates in MS, the Southeast, and the U.S.?



		doc01170420230322163652.pdf



				2023-08-30T09:32:34-0500

		JohnEric W. Smith, PhD





				2023-09-01T13:54:29-0500

		Kimberly R. Hall












       APPROVAL FORM FOR   


DEGREE PROGRAMS   
  MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY  


NOTE:  This form is a cover sheet that must accompany the degree program change proposal.  The actual proposal 
should be prepared in accordance with format requirements provided in the Guide and Format for Curriculum Proposals 
published by the UCCC.  Both cover sheet and proposal should be submitted to UCCC Mail Stop 9702 (281 Garner 
Hall), Phone:  325-9410. 
  
College: Education                     Department: Counseling, Higher Ed, Ed Psych, & Foundations                                                                       
  
Contact Person: Elaine Wei       Mail Stop: 9727            E-mail: ewei@colled.msstate.edu                                                                                                                                                             
Nature of Change:  Program Modification – Addition of Campus 5                                               
Date Initiated:  01/18/2022               Effective Date: Spring 2024                              
Current Degree Program Name: Master’s of Science 
  
Major:  Educational Psychology  Concentration: General Educational Psychology 
  
  
  
New Degree Program Name: No Change 
 
Major: No Change     Concentration:  No Change 
 
 
 
 
Summary of Proposed Changes: 
 
Add Campus 5 to the concentration in General Educational Psychology for the MS degree 
program in Educational Psychology. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









































		MS Ed Psych Degree Modification REVISED Cover Page

		DEGREE PROGRAMS

		MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY





		MS Ed Psych Degree Modification










       APPROVAL FORM FOR   


DEGREE PROGRAMS   
  MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY  
NOTE:  This form is a cover sheet that must accompany the degree program change proposal.  The actual proposal 
should be prepared in accordance with format requirements provided in the Guide and Format for Curriculum Proposals 
published by the UCCC.  Both cover sheet and proposal should be submitted to UCCC Mail Stop 9702 (281 Garner 
Hall), Phone:  325-9410. 
  
College:     Education                                           Department:  ISWD                                                                      
  
Contact Person: Dr. Gregory M. Francom    Mail Stop:  9730   E-mail: gmf124@msstate.edu                                                                                                                                                          
Nature of Change:  Program Revision          Date Initiated: March 9, 2023     Effective Date:  
Spring Semester, 2024                           
Current Degree Program Name: Master of Science 
  
Major:  Instructional Technology            Concentration: Instructional Design, Distance 
Education, or Multimedia 
  
  
  
New Degree Program Name: Master of Science  
 
Major: Instructional Technology  Concentration: Instructional Design, Educational 
Technology, or Instructional Systems and Workforce Development 
 
 
 
 
Summary of Proposed Changes: 
The program modification proposed here involves adjustments to the core courses and 
concentrations of the existing Master of Science in Instructional Technology program in an effort 
to better cater to the needs of the program’s target audiences. The modification does not create 
any new courses that are not already in the catalog. Just like the current MSIT program, this 
newly proposed program has a core of required courses and three concentrations. The proposed 
core requires 18 credit hours, and the newly proposed concentrations are instructional design, 
educational technology and instructional systems and workforce development. Each of these 
concentrations consists of 9 credit hours.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











Brief Overview of Proposed Changes to the Program 
(see curriculum outline below for more detail) 


 
Number of elective hours for the proposed and current program is the same (6).   
 
Number of overall credit hours for the proposed and current program is the same (33).   
 
Number of courses that need to be developed for the proposed program – 0. 
 
Courses that have been deleted from the current MSIT program (6) 


• TECH 8703 Trends and Issues in Instructional Systems & Tech 


• TECH 8813 Foundations of distance education  


• TECH 8853 Learning technologies in distance education 


• TECH 8443 Theories of Multimedia Learning 


• TECH 8743 Interactive Media 


• TECH 8693 Multiple perspectives on instructional technology  
 


Courses that have been added (5) 


• TECH 4763/6763 Digital tools for 21st century teaching and learning 


• TECH 4583/6583 Graphics and web design  


• TECH 4333/6333 Introduction to computer science education  


• TECH 6263 Diverse Wrk & ed Environ 


• TECH 8233 Analysis of Workforce Education programs and survey research in workforce 
development 
 


Courses that have changed concentration or area (5) 


• TECH 8713 Research in instructional systems and workforce development  


• TECH 8533 Evaluation and assessment in instructional systems and technology 


• TECH 8543 Multimedia Design 1 


• TECH 8643 Multimedia Design 2 


• TECH 8823 Design, delivery and management of distance education 
 







GRADUATE DEGREE MODIFICATION OUTLINE FORM 
Use the chart below to make modifications to an existing Graduate Degree. All deleted courses and information  
should be shown in italics and all new courses and information in bold. Please include the course prefix,  
number, and title in both columns. Expand rows as needed. 
 


Catalog Description and Curriculum Outline  
 


CURRENT Degree Description PROPOSED Degree Description 
Degree: Master of Science 
Major: Instructional Technology 
Concentrations: Instructional Design, Distance 
Education, and Multimedia 


Degree: Master of Science 
Major: Instructional Technology 
Concentrations: Instructional Design, Educational 
Technology, and Instructional Systems and Workforce 
Development 


“The Master of Science in Instructional Technology 
(MSIT) degree is designed for educators or industry 
professionals who have interest in the effective use of 
instructional technology in educational and corporate 
settings. Choosing from three concentrations – 
instructional design, distance education or multimedia 
– you will develop up to date knowledge and hands on 
experience of instructional materials for teaching and 
training.” 


“The Master of Science in Instructional Technology 
(MSIT) degree is designed for educators or industry 
professionals who have interest in the effective use of 
instructional technology in educational and corporate 
settings. Choosing from three concentrations – 
Instructional Design, Educational Technology, or 
Instructional Systems and Workforce Development – 
you will develop up-to-date knowledge of learning and 
instructional design theory, and gain hands-on 
experience with instructional materials for teaching and 
training.” 


CURRENT CURRICULUM OUTLINE Required 
Hours PROPOSED CURRICULUM OUTLINE Required 


Hours 
College Required Courses 
None 


0 College Required Courses 
None 


0 


Major Required Courses 
 
TECH 8843 Foundations of instructional 
systems and technology  
TECH 8693 Multiple perspectives on 
instructional technology 
TECH 8703 Trends and issues in 
instructional systems and technology 
TECH 8713 Research in instructional 
systems and workforce development 
TECH 8793 Directed project and portfolio 
development 
 


15 Major required courses 
 
TECH 8843 Foundations of instructional 
systems and technology 
TECH 8823 Design, delivery and 
management of distance education 
TECH 8623 Instructional design 1 
TECH 8543 Multimedia design 1 
TECH 8533 Evaluation and assessment of 
instructional systems and technology 
TECH 8793 Directed project and portfolio 
development 


18 


Concentration 1. (Instructional design) 
Courses 
 
TECH 8723 Instructional design 2 
TECH 8523 Project management in 
instructional design 
TECH 8533 Evaluation and assessment in 
instructional systems and technology 
TECH 8623 Instructional design 1 
 
 


12 Concentration 1. (Instructional design) 
Courses 
 
TECH 8723 Instructional design 2 
TECH 8523 Project management in 
instructional design 
TECH 8643 Multimedia design 2 


9 







 
 
Concentration 2. (Multimedia) Courses 
 
 
TECH 8443 Theories of multimedia 
Learning 
TECH 8543 Multimedia design 1 
TECH 8643 Multimedia design 2 
TECH 8743 Interactive Media 
 
 
 
 


12 Concentration 2. (Educational 
technology) Courses 
 
TECH 4763/6763 Digital tools for 21st 
century teaching and learning 
TECH 4583/6583 Graphics and web 
design 
TECH 4333/6333 Introduction to 
computer science education 
 


9 


Concentration 3. (Distance education) 
Courses 
 
TECH 8533 Evaluation and assessment in 
instructional systems and technology 
TECH 8813 Foundations of distance 
education 
TECH 8823 Design, delivery and 
management of distance education 
TECH 8853 learning technologies in 
distance education 


12 Concentration 3. (Instructional systems 
and workforce development) Courses 
 
TECH 6263 Diverse Wrk & Ed Environ  
TECH 8233 Analysis of Workforce 
Education Programs and Survey 
Research in Workforce Developent 
TECH 8713 Research in instructional 
systems and workforce development 


9 


Electives 6 Electives  6 
Total Hours 33 Total Hours 33 


 
 


 


Justification and Student Learning Outcomes 
 
Three concentrations are proposed in this new MSIT curriculum: Instructional Design, Educational Technology and 
Instructional Systems and Workforce Development. These new concentrations are more focused on the target 
audiences for the program: (a) Students wanting to gain instructional design skills to work in education, industry or 
government organizations, (b) K-12 educators wanting to enhance their skills with educational technologies and 
become a technology leader at the school, and (c) workforce development professionals. Instead of a distance 
education or multimedia concentration, ALL students are required to gain basic competencies in these core areas as 
part of the major required courses. One note about the educational technology concentration is that it fits in with the 
Mississippi Department of Education’s Computer Science Education Endorsement, so if a current K-12 teacher in 
Mississippi completes this endorsement and goes on to finish the proposed MSIT program, they will get a pay 
increase. Three of the endorsement courses make up the educational technology concentration and the fourth one 
(TECH 4553/6553 Information Processing) can be taken as an elective in this program.  
 
 
Some important reasons for the proposed revisions include the following: 
 


• The current MSIT Program enrollment numbers have dwindled, it's no longer a very viable program at 
present.  


• This proposed program has promise for boosting enrollment because it expands the potential market of 
students interested in the program to include K-12 educators and workforce development professionals, in 
addition to the instructional design audience that is an important part of the current MSIT program. The 







new target audience for the program includes (a) Students wanting to gain instructional design skills to 
work in education, industry or government organizations, (b) K-12 educators wanting to enhance their 
skills with educational technologies and become a technology leader at the school, and (c) workforce 
development professionals.  


• The current MSIT Program is out of date. This update will help align the program better with current 
practices in the field and also with potential student interests.  


• The growth of technology-mediated learning solutions during the pandemic has increased focus on the need 
for a wide variety of people to have instructional design and distance learning skills (see core courses and 
Instructional Design concentration). 


 
Additional concepts that guided the revision process 
 


• The target audience for the proposed program allows us to better focus on the audiences available to us 
here in the region (see proposed concentrations) - Instructional designers, K-12 Educators, and Workforce 
professionals.  


• The Educational Technology concentration in the proposed program also includes courses from the new 
Computer Science education endorsement classes for K-12 educators. This gives undergraduate students a 
path to graduate study and increases potential enrollment in these classes. Because the Computer Science 
education endorsement was adopted by the state, K-12 teachers who complete this endorsement and also 
finish the proposed MSIT degree get a pay increase from their school district. Three of the endorsement 
courses make up the educational technology concentration and the fourth one (TECH 4553/6553 
Information Processing) can be taken as an elective in this program. 


 
Learning outcomes for the proposed program 
 


• Students will demonstrate a high level of competency in the instructional technology content areas 
• Students will develop a well-designed instructional technology project 
• Students will be able to develop and evaluate instructional designs for organizations 
• Students will apply theoretical concepts to practical instructional systems and programs 
• Students will develop effective instructional media 


 


Program modification questions 
 


1. Will this program change meet local, state, regional, and national educational and cultural needs? If so, 
please describe. 


a. Yes, educational needs. K-12 educators who take the educational technology concentration as part 
of this degree will better be able to provide technology enhanced learning experiences for 
students. They will also be better equipped to support distance learning experiences. With the 
Computer Science Education endorsement, these educators will also be able to support the new 
Mississippi Department of Education’s computer science initiative in which all elementary school 
must provide one hour of computer science instruction each week starting in the 2023-24 school 
year.  


2. Will this program change result in duplication in the System? If so, please describe.  
a. No, it’s a modification of an existing program which doesn’t result in duplication in the system.  


3. Will this program change/advance student diversity within the discipline? If so, please describe.  
a. No specific changes in the current make up of students/professionals in the discipline are expected 


as a result of this program modification.  
4. Will this program change result in an increase in the potential placement of graduates in MS, the Southeast, 


and the U.S.? If so, please describe.  
a. Yes, the more focused curriculum in the planned program has great potential for placing graduates 


within the concentration areas of study.  
5. Will this program change result in an increase in the potential salaries of graduates in MS, the Southeast, 


and the U.S.? If so, please describe. 







a. Yes, K-12 Educators who take the Educational Technology concentration and finish the proposed 
MSIT degree would be eligible for a pay increase from their school district. Students taking the 
instructional design or instructional systems and workforce development concentrations would 
benefit from these changes as well, because they would receive more targeted skills that are 
aligned with best practices.  


 
 


Proposed 4-Letter Abbreviation 
Same as current program: MSIT 
 
 









		DEGREE PROGRAMS

		MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY





				2023-05-16T17:30:56-0500

		JohnEric W. Smith, PhD





				2023-05-23T09:01:20-0500

		Kimberly R. Hall


























































